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HISTORIC LANDMARK COMMISSION 

MARCH 25, 2013 
DEMOLITION AND RELOCATION PERMITS 

1218 E. 51ST STREET 
HDP-2013-0059 

 
 
 
PROPOSAL 

Demolish two houses, both of which were moved onto the site in 1948-1949. 
 
ARCHITECTURE 

Although both houses now have the same address of 1218 E. 51st Street, historically, the 
yellow house facing Lancaster Court has borne the address of 5104 Lancaster Court. 
1218 E. 51st Street 
One-story, rectangular-plan front-gabled frame house with two front doors, 1:1 fenestration, 
and a central, partial-width front-gabled porch on turned wood posts. 
5104 Lancaster Court 
One-story wing-and-gable plan vernacular late Victorian frame house with a partial-width 
independent porch on plain square wood posts.  The house has a projecting bay on the left 
side, containing a 6:6 window and a rectangular-plan one-story shed-roofed addition on the 
rear containing a bank of four 6:6 windows.  There is a larger, single picture window in the 
projecting front gable; it has a rectangular transomed configuration.  The front doors are at 
90-degree angles to each other, both opening onto the front porch.  Both doors are modern 
replacement doors.  
RESEARCH 

City permits and city directories reveal that both houses were moved onto the site in 1948-
1949, although there is confusion about which building was actually moved to the site from 
303 W. 18th Street.  The house moving permit from 1948 shows that the house at 303 W. 
18th Street was moved to 1218 E. 51st Street, and it may be that the house shown on the 
1935 Sanborn map as 1714½ Lavaca Street was the structure actually moved to E. 51st 
Street with a front porch then added.  The house at 303 W 18th Street does not match the 
configuration of either house, but is more closely aligned with the house currently at 5104 
Lancaster Court, which may have had additions (such as the projecting bay on the south 
(left) side of the house and enclosing the rear porch) when it was moved to its current site. 
Both houses have always been used as duplexes on this site, with a high turnover of 
tenants.  The tenant lists include a railroad clerk, a car mechanic, an attendant at the State 
School, a cab driver, an iron worker, a garbage truck driver, and the proprietor of a 
laundromat. 
STAFF COMMENTS 

The houses are beyond the bounds of any city survey.  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Release the demolition permits.  Neither house has the architectural nor the historical 
significance to warrant individual landmark designation. 
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LOCATION MAP 
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1218 E. 51st Street 

Moved onto this site in 1948 from 303 W. 18th Street 
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OCCUPANCY HISTORY 
1218 E. 51st Street 

 
City Directory Research, Austin History Center 
By City Historic Preservation Office 
March, 2013 
 
1992  A: Olivia Gonzales Ellison, renter 
   No occupation listed 

NOTE:  The directory indicates that Olivia Gonzales Ellison lived at 6919-
B Bennett Avenue. 

  B: Kyle B. Pender, renter 
No occupation listed 

 
1985-86 A: No resident listed 
  B: Ludivina Canales, renter 
   No occupation listed 
 
1981  A: Ronald O. Tucker, renter 
   No occupation listed 

NOTE:  The directory indicates that Ronald O. Tucker was a new resident 
at this address. 

  B: Vickie Tucker, renter 
   No occupation listed 

NOTE:  The directory indicates that Vickie Tucker was a new resident at 
this address. 

 
1977  A: Pat Taylor, renter 
   Student 

NOTE:  The directory indicates that Pat Taylor was a new resident at this 
address. 

  B: George R. and Bernadette Hurd, III, renters 
   No occupation listed 

NOTE:  The directory indicates that George and Bernadette Hurd were 
new residents at this address. 

 
1973  A: Vacant 
  B: Vacant 
 
1968  A: John J. and Bertha Pierce, renters 
   Driver, Centex Disposal (not listed in the directory) 
  B: John and Mary L. Granados, renters 
   Paver 
 
1962  A: Vacant 
  B: James E. and Ethel Wilson, renters 
   Driver, City Sanitation Department 
 
1959  A: Alton and Kathleen Cravat, owners 

Iron worker 
  B: James E. and Ethel Wilson, renters 
   Carpenter 
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1955  A: Frank and Doris Ward, renters 
   Employed by the Checker Cab Company 

B: Eunice J. Moore, renter 
 Widow, T.B. Moore 
 No occupation listed 

 
1952  Tommie and Peggy Dotson, renters 

Insurance agent 
A: Vacant 
 

1949  Francis H. Moore, renter 
Proprietor (with William H. Moore), Moore’s Launderette, 2706 Guadalupe Street. 
A: Billy L. and Louise Stone, renters 
 Draftsman, State Highway Department 

 
1947  No houses are listed on Lancaster Court. 
LISTINGS FROM HERE DOWN ARE FOR 303 W. 18th STREET – THE ORIGINAL SITE OF 
THE HOUSE. 
 
1947  Warren T. and Inez Clift, renters 
  Warren: Accountant 
  Inez:  Teacher, Fulmore Junior High School 

NOTE:  Warren and Inez Clift moved to an apartment at 1800 Guadalupe Street.  
Both were listed into the early 1950s with the same occupations. 

 
1944-45 Warren T. and Inez Clift, renters 
  Warren: Employed by the State Comptroller’s Office 
  Inez:  Student, University of Texas 
  Also listed is Robert I. Clift, in the U.S. Army. 
 
1941  Bertha Epperson, renter 
  Housekeeper 
 
1939  Bertha Epperson, renter 
  Housekeeper 
 
1937  Harff G. and Bertha Epperson, renters 

Contractor, and president, Austin Dunbrick and Tile Company, 312 Barton 
Springs Road. 

 
1935  Vacant 
 
1932-33 James D. and Katie Easton, renters 
  Salesman 

Also listed are James D. Easton, Jr., a presser; Lucy K. Easton, a telephone 
operator at Southwestern Bell Telephone Company; and Thomas A. Easton, no 
occupation stated. 

1930-31 Merlin C. and Betty Adams, renters 
  No occupation listed 
 
1929  Vacant 
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1927  The address is not listed in the directory. 
 
BIOGRAPHICAL NOTES: 
Merlin C. and Elizabeth (Betty) Adams (ca. 1930 – ca. 1932) 
Merlin C. and Elizabeth Adams appear in the 1930 U.S. Census in a rented house at 2914 San 
Gabriel Street in Austin.  Merlin Adams was then 54, had been born in Texas, and was a 
salesman for an oil company.  Elizabeth Adams was then 52, and had been born in Texas.  
They had four children: Gladys, 24, Joy, 21, Mark, 18, and Mary, 16.  None of the children had 
an occupation listed in the census report. 
Merlin Adams died in Travis County on March 27, 1942. 
 

 
Merlin Adams’ World War I draft registration card (1918) shows that he and Bettie were living in 
El Paso, and that he was a self-employed auto livery man. 
 
James D. and Katie Easton (ca. 1932 – ca. 1934) 
James D. and Katie Easton appear in the 1930 U.S. Census as renting a house at 403 W. 15th 
Street in Austin.  James D. Easton was then 64, had been born in Texas, and was a grocery 
salesman.  Katie Easton was then 42, and had been born in Texas to German-born parents.  
She had no occupation listed.  The couple had five children:  James D. Jr., 26, a clothes 
presser; Chris, 25, a mill-man in a lumber mill; Lucy, 21, a telephone operator; Thomas, 18, a 
driver for a florist; and Varner Bell, 13, all of whom had been born in Texas.  The family also had 
a lodger, 20-year old Leola Schroeder, a telephone operator. 
 
Bertha Epperson (ca. 1936 – ca. 1943) 
Bertha Epperson appears as the renter of this house in the 1940 U.S. Census, when it was still 
located at 303 W. 18th Street.  She was a 46-year old Texas-born divorcee who was a house 
mother in a boys’ dormitory.  With her lived her 23-year old daughter, Erlene Bingham, a book-
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keeper for the LCRA, and her son, Jay Bingham, 25, a construction carpenter, Jay’s wife, 
Florence, 28, and their son, Kenneth, 4. 
 
Bertha Epperson died in Travis County, Texas, December 12, 1994. 
 
Warren and Inez Clift (ca. 1943 – ca. 1948) – the last occupants of the house before it was 
moved to its current site. 
The 1930 U.S. Census shows Warren and Inez Clift owning their house in Vernon, Texas.  
Warren Clift was then 35, had been born in Texas, and was a trucking contractor in the oil field.  
Inez Clift was then 32, had been born in Texas, and had no occupation listed.  The couple had 
two sons, Robert, 6, and William, 4. 
 
The 1940 U.S. Census shows Warren and Inez Clift living in Crosby County, Texas, on a farm 
they owned.  In addition to sons Robert and William, the Clifts had two daughters, Mary L, 11, 
and Ruth, 3. 
 
Warren Clift died in Stephenville, Texas on October 3, 1967. 
 

 
Warren Clift’s World War I draft registration card shows that he was living at Lingleville, Texas, 

and worked as a mechanic for an electrical company in Abilene.  He was single. 
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Building permit to H.D. Ainsworth to move the house onto the site from 303 W. 18th Street 

(1948) 
 

 

 
Water service permit to H.D. Ainsworth (1949).  City records also have a duplicate permit for the 

South Apartment in the house, indicating that the house was always used as a duplex on this 
site. 
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Building permit to North Austex Mortgage Company to repair the house (1965) 

 
 
This area of the city does not appear on the 1935 nor the 1962 Sanborn map. 
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5104 Lancaster Court 
Moved onto this site in 1949 possibly from 303 W. 18th Street 

 
 

OCCUPANCY HISTORY 
5104 Lancaster Court 

 
City Directory Research, Austin History Center 
By City Historic Preservation Office 
March, 2013 
 
1992  A: Joseph L. Moss, renter 
   No occupation listed 

NOTE:  The directory indicates that Joseph L. Moss was a new resident 
at this address. 

  B: Jimmy Renteria, renter 
No occupation listed 
NOTE:  The directory indicates that Jimmy Renteria was a new resident 
at this address. 

 
1985-86 A: Elizabeth Alderdice, renter 
   Interior designer, Clegg Austin, 316 Congress Avenue. 
  B: Shirley Steen, renter 
   No occupation listed 
 
1981  A: Vacant 
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  B: No return 
1977  A: Robert J. McCurdy, renter 
   Student 
  B: Vacant 
 
1973  A: Joseph E. and Julie Powers, renters 
   Attendant, Travis State School 
  B: No return 
 
1968  M.G. Guerra, renter 
  No occupation listed 
 
1962  Vacant 
 
1959  Milton E. and Lydia Cain, renters 

Line supervisor, Ragsdale Flying Service, 1801 E. 51st Street. 
 
1955  A: Vacant 

B: Henry F. and Ruby Petty, renters 
 U.S. Air Force 

 
1952  Robert T. and Oretha E. Clay, renters 

Mechanic, Covert Automobiles, Buick cars, 5th Street and Lamar Boulevard. 
 

1949  Gordon M. and Mary Carey, renters 
  Route foreman 
 
  Duane O. and Marjorie Rogas, renters 
  Clerk, Southern Pacific Lines 
 
1947  No houses are listed on Lancaster Court. 
 

 
Building permit to H.D. Ainsworth to move the house onto the site (1948).  However, it appears 
that the house that was originally at 303 W. 18th Street may have been moved to 5104 
Lancaster Court and another building moved to what is now 1218 E. 51st Street (the permit for 
that move references the house at 303 W. 18th Street). 
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Water service permit to H.D. Ainsworth (1949).  City records also have a duplicate permit for the 

South Apartment in the house, indicating that the house was always used as a duplex on this 
site. 

 

 
Building permit to North Austex Mortgage Company to repair the house (1965) 
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Building permit to Larry Miller to repair and remodel the house (1979) 

 
 

 
The 1935 Sanborn map shows a house with a partial-width front porch and a partial-width back 
porch at 303 W. 18th Street (RED circle)  – this configuration does not match up exactly with 
either of the two houses on the site but is closer to the house that is currently at 5104 Lancaster 
Court than the house that is currently at 1218 E. 51st Street. The house outlined with a GREEN 
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circle may be the house that was moved to 1218 E. 51st Street, but the scale appears to be 
smaller than that of the current house.  There are no city directory listings for 1714½ Lavaca 
Street. 
 
The 51st Street and Lancaster Court area of the city does not appear on the 1935 nor the 1962 
Sanborn map. 

 
 


